AGREEMENT

BY AND BETWEEN

THE CITY OF SOUTH AMBOY

AND

POLICEMEN'S BENEVOLENT ASSOCIATION LOCAL NO. 63

JULY 1, 2002 THROUGH JUNE 30, 2005

LOCCKE & CORREIA P.A. 24 SALEM STREET HACKENSACK, N.J. 07601 (201) 488-0880

TABLE OF CONTENTS

ARTICLE	
	PAGE
	PREAMBLE
I.	RECOGNITION
II.	MEDICAL BENEFITS
III.	LIFE INSURANCE
IV.	UNIFORMS
V.,	HOLIDAYS
VI.	SALARIES
VII.	TERMINAL LEAVE PAYMENT
viii.	LONGEVITY
IX.	VACATION
ж.	WORK SCHEDULE AND OVERTIME
XI.	COMPENSATION FOR TEMPORARY ASSIGNMENTS 21
xrr.	COURT TIME
XIII.	PERSONAL DAYS
XIV.	COLLEGE CREDITS
XV.	MEDICAL EXAMINATION
xvx.	NON ECONOMIC ISSUES
xvii.	STRIKES AND OTHER JOB ACTION
XVIII.	REPRESENTATION FEE
XIX.	GENERAL PROVISIONS

XX.	GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE
xxr.	PBA DELEGATE
XXII.	DEPARTMENTAL INVESTIGATIONS
xxrr.	TERM AND RENEWAL
	SALARIES - Appendix A-1
	SALARIES - Appendix A-2
	SALARIES - Appendix A-3
	A. Charles and the contract of

PREAMBLE

This Agreement, effective July 1, 2002, by and between the City of South Amboy, in the County of Middlesex, a municipal corporation in the State of New Jersey, (hereinafter referred to as the "City") and the South Amboy Patrolman's Benevolent Association (hereinafter referred to as the "P.B.A." represents the complete and final understanding on all bargainable issues between the City and the P.B.A. and is designed to maintain and promote a harmonious relationship between the City and the Employees who are represented by the P.B.A. in order that continuous efficiency and excellence in service be rendered by members of the South Amboy Police Department.

I. RECOGNITION

1. The City hereby recognizes the P.B.A. as the sole and exclusive representative of all employees in the PBA bargaining unit for the purpose of collective bargaining with respect to rates of pay, wages, hours of work, settlement of grievances, and other mandatorily negotiable conditions of employment.

The bargaining unit shall consist of all police officers and police officers (Detective Assignment) of the Department of Police, of the City of South Amboy, New Jersey now employed or hereafter employed, excluding Superior Officers (Police Sergeants through police captains exclusive), the Police Chief, and all other employees of the City of South Amboy.

2. There shall be no discrimination, interference, or coercion by the City or any of its agents against the employees represented by the PBA because of membership in or activities of the PBA. The PBA shall not intimidate or coerce employees into membership. Neither the City or the PBA shall discriminate against any employee because of race, creed, color, sex or national origin.

II. MEDICAL BENEFITS

- 1. The City hereby agrees to assume full cost of providing the following medical benefits to the employees covered by this Agreement and their families:
 - A. Hospitalization equivalent to the former Blue Cross 365, Blue Shield UCR, and Rider J, and
 - B. Major medical coverage equivalent to the former expanded Connecticut general plan, and
 - C. Dental Insurance coverage equivalent to the former Connecticut general dental plan:

FEE SCHEDULE: Deductible: max.	uck \$25.00 with \$75.00 aggregate per family per year.
Basic & Prosthodontic Limit Orthodontic:	\$1,000.00
Basic Co-insurance:	750.00
Prosthodontic & orthodontic Co-insurance:	80/20
matrance:	50/50

- D. 1. Prescription plan with a one (\$1.00) Dollar deductible at a local pharmacy. Effective March 1, 2001 the public employer shall have the right to modify the prescription plan so as to provide for a \$5.00 co-payment for generic medication and a \$10.00 co-payment for brand name medication.
- 2. Effective January 1, 1988, upon retirement or death of an employee covered by this Agreement, the City shall supply and/or continue to pay the cost of all medical coverages as set

forth above for retiree, retiree's/decedent's spouse and retiree's/decedent's dependent children.

- 3. It is hereby agreed by the PBA that the City may exercise its right to change insurance carriers so long as the coverages enumerated in this agreement are maintained at their equivalent levels.
 - D. Each employee covered by this Agreement shall have the individual right to waive medical benefits coverage offered by the public employer. A Police Officer who waives the right to medical benefits provided under this contract shall receive the following compensation, provided that the Police Officer supplies proof of coverage under other health care plan provisions:

Type
Single \$1,000
Parent/Child \$1,250
Husband/Wife \$1,500
Family \$1,750

The modification shall be effective no earlier than April 1, 2001.

TIT. LIFE INSURANCE

- 1. The City hereby agrees to provide group term life insurance through the City's major medical insurance carrier for all employees covered by the agreement. The amount of the coverage shall be \$50,000.00 per employee with double indemnity coverage for accidental death.
- 2. Upon retirement of an employee covered by this agreement, the City shall cause said life insurance to remain in effect on said employee. Upon the retired employee reaching the age of sixty-five (65) said life insurance shall be reduced to one-half of the specified amount. Upon the retired employee reaching the age of seventy (70) years of age, said life insurance shall be reduced to \$2,500.00. The city shall then cause said insurance to remain in effect until death of said employee.
- 3. Employees who have retired prior to January 1, 1983 and are presently covered by life insurance shall be covered by life insurance benefits stipulated in the 1981-1982 contract (\$20,000.00 decreasing by \$2,000.00 increment on retirement anniversary to \$10,000.00 further reduction to \$2,500.00 on attaining age seventy) and shall not be entitled to upgraded life insurance benefits.

IV. UNIFORMS

1. The City hereby agrees to pay the following annual allowance to all employees covered by this Agreement for reimbursement for purchase and maintenance of uniforms and/or equipment. The Chief of Police shall have the right to review equipment purchases in consideration and subject to the employee's overall uniform appearance.

Effective July 1, 2002 the annual allowance shall be Seven Hundred Seventy-Five (\$775.00) dollars. Effective July 1, 2003 the annual allowance shall be Eight Hundred Twenty-Five dollars (\$825.00). Effective July 1, 2004 the annual allowance shall be Eight Hundred Seventy-Five (\$875.00) dollars.

- 2. The City shall compensate any employee covered by this agreement for damage caused during the performance of duty in the following manner:
 - A. Prescription glasses and dental work shall be reimbursed by the City's workmen's compensation insurance carrier pursuant to mandated coverage by state statutes provided that a compensable injury occurs.
 - B. Personal property, including clothing, shall be procured by the City through its normal purchasing procedures provided that the maximum cost of any article or articles replaced shall not exceed \$50.00 per incident. Payments shall be made directly to vendors

supplying said items.

- C. Official police uniforms, prescriptions, glasses and dental work shall be replaced in full through the City's normal purchasing procedures where a non-compensable incident occurs provided that such loss shall have occurred in active official police duty.
- D. The employer agrees that the Uniform allowance check shall be issued on or before the first day of May of each year.

V. HOLIDAYS

- 1. The City hereby agrees to pay each employee covered by this Agreement, at the individual employee's base rate, for fourteen (14) paid holidays as designated by the City. Said payment for holidays shall be made in recognition that employees covered by this Agreement work on rotating and fixed schedules and are not given time off for designated holidays. Payment for the holidays shall be made during the pay period in which they fall. The City hereby agrees to report the payment of said holiday pay for pension purposes to the New Jersey Department of Treasury, Division of Pensions, in accordance with the Division's rules and regulations.
 - Holiday Parity Reserved.
- 3. As presently designated by ordinance adopted by the South Amboy City Council at his sole discretion, the legal holidays of the City of South Amboy are:

New Year's Day, January 1
Martin Luther King's Birthday
Lincoln's Birthday
Washington's Birthday
Good Friday
Memorial Day
Independence Day - July 4

Labor Day

Columbus Day

General Election Day

Veteran's Day - November 11

Thanksgiving Day

Day After Thanksgiving

Christmas Day - December 25

- 4. Nothing contained in this section shall be deemed to restrict the right of the City to change, modify, or otherwise designate holidays.
- 5. Employees assigned to work and who do work on the listed holidays shall be paid at the rate of double time and one-half (2.5) the base hourly rate for such hours.
- 6. For holiday computation purposes the actual holiday, and not the date designated for City celebration, will be utilized for the following days: Christmas Day, Fourth of July, New Year's Day and Veteran's Day.

VI. SALARTES

- 1. Salaries for employees covered by this Agreement shall be as set forth on Appendix A annexed.
- 2. Any employee who is required to work a shift other than the day shift will be paid a shift differential of twenty cents (\$.20) per hour worked on the second shift and forty cents (\$.40) per hour worked on the third shift. Payment shall be made twice a year. The shift differential shall not be used in the calculation of longevity payments nor shall such payments be reported for pension purposes nor shall such payments be reported for pension purposes nor shall such payments be reported for pension purposes unless so required by the State of New Jersey.

VII. TERMINAL LEAVE PAYMENT

- 1. In recognition of accumulated sick leave based upon records of the Police Department and in accordance with law adopted by ordinance of City council in previous years specifying sick leave based upon fifteen (15) days sick leave per year, members of the Association shall be entitled to a lump sum terminal leave payment upon retirement effective after January 1, 1985 based upon:
- A. One (1) day of current base salary (annual salary plus longevity) for each two (2) days of unused accumulated sick leave.
- B. Five Hundred Dollars (\$500.00) per full year of service after the completion of Twenty Five (25) years of service with the South Amboy Police Department.
- 2. The maximum lump sum payment for terminal leave specified in paragraph 1 of this Article shall be Twenty Thousand (\$20,000.00) Dollars, which sum is exclusive of other benefits or compensation to which the retiring employee may be entitled.
- 3. Each retiring employee shall be provided with the individual option to receive the terminal leave benefit as defined above in up to three payments over a period of up to three years.

VIII. LONGEVITY

1. The City agrees to pay employees covered under this Agreement longevity increments as set forth below as compensation in addition to their regular salaries:

LONGEVITY SCHEDULE

AMOUNT	LENGTH OF SERVICE
2% 1% 2% 2% 2% 1%	At five (5) years of service At ten (10) years of service At eleven (11) years of service At fifteen (15) years of service At twenty (20) years of service At twenty-one (21) years of service At twenty-four (24) years of service. (This modification is effective 7/1/2002).

For the purpose of fixing an individual's tenure, his date of appointment shall be deemed to be the anniversary date for determining the length of service for longevity pay provided that if an individual's anniversary date falls in the middle of the pay period the effective date for pay purposes will be adjusted to the closest beginning date of a pay period. The maximum gain or loss of days will be seven (7) days.

IX. VACATION

1. Employees covered by this Agreement shall be entitled to annual vacation leave in accordance with the following schedule:

LENGTH OF SERVICE	VACATION	
Six months to one year One year to five years Five years to ten years Ten years to fifteen years Fifteen years to twenty years Twenty years or longer	one (1) week two (2) weeks three (3) weeks Four (4) weeks five (5) weeks six (6) weeks	

For the purpose of fixing an individual's tenure, his date of appointment shall be deemed to be the anniversary date for determining the length of service for vacation leave provided that if an individual's anniversary date falls in the middle of the pay period the effective date, for pay purposes, will be adjusted to the closest beginning date of a pay period. The maximum gain or loss will be seven (7) days. A "week" refers to five (5) work days.

2. Police Officers shall select vacation on a weekly basis by seniority against other Police Officers on their respective shifts. Vacation may be utilized in individual day units rather than in blocks of a week provided that prior approval of the department is requested and received. It shall be

permissible for Police Officers and any superior officers to be on leave at the same time providing minimum manning requirements as determined by the sole discretion of the City are met.

X. WORK SCHEDULE AND OVERTIME

- 1. The current work schedule, 5 on, 3 off, 5 on, 3 off and 5 on, 4 off, shall continue for all members covered under this agreement.
- 2. All police officers covered by this Agreement shall receive overtime pay for all time worked over an average forty (40) hours per week at a rate of one and one-half (1 ½) times their hourly rate.
- 3a. When an officer is held over or called in prior to his shift, he shall be compensated for those hours at time and one-half (1 %) his hourly rate of pay for each such hour worked.
- b. When an officer is called to work during a period not contiguous with his shift, the City shall pay said officer for a minimum of four (4) hours of work at time and one-half (1%) the hourly rate, provided that officer remains on duty for the four (4) hour period. Should the officer leave active duty voluntarily, he shall be compensated only for the hours worked. It shall be the responsibility of the Superior Officers to have assignments available for the full period worked.
- 4. The police department shall establish an overtime list to insure that all employees covered by this Agreement are offered the opportunity to work an equivalent amount of overtime hours.
 - 5. The City, upon three (3) months notice to the PBA,

may institute specialized individual shifts as required.

- 6. The Chief of Police shall be ultimately responsible for the implementation of this Article through his subordinate superior personnel. All overtime shall be accounted for by charging hours to the individual officer working or refusing the overtime he has been offered.
- 7. It is the responsibility of the squad commander to call the proper personnel for overtime. The Division Commander shall monitor the performance of the subordinate squad commanders to ensure that the actions of personnel are in compliance with these regulations. Failure to enforce these provisions shall subject the officer to review and disciplinary action.
- 8. In situations requiring the assignment of patrolmen only other patrolmen shall be assigned to work the overtime. A superior officer shall not work on an overtime basis for patrolmen.
- 9. If a situation requires the replacement of a superior officer by another superior officer and all superior officers either decline or cannot be contacted, the overtime shall be offered to a patrolman in accordance with the patrolmen's overtime list, except that the hours worked or declined in the capacity of a superior officer shall not be charged to the patrolmen's overtime list.
- 10. In situation involving scheduled absences of a superior officer such as vacation days, the senior patrolman on the

superior officer's squad shall be assigned to said rank on an acting basis and be entitled to rank differential.

- 11. In an overtime situation, the decision of which overtime list (superior's or patrolmen's) to utilize shall be determined on an "overtime caused by" basis, exception. If a mergeant from another division is scheduled to work with a patrolman and a sergeant to meet minimum manpower requirements and either sergeant then reports off (sick day, personal day) the patrolman's overtime list is utilized.
- 12. A sergeant, after utilizing both the sergeant's and patrolman's overtime list cannot force a patrolman to work a sergeant's overtime.

EXAMPLES:

- A. Sergeant A is on a scheduled absence; the senior patrolman on A's squad is assigned as acting sergeant. If the senior patrolman reports off duty (sick, personal day, etc.); the Superior's overtime list shall be utilized.
- B. Sergeant A is on a schedule absence; the senior patrolman on A squad is assigned as acting Sergeant. The less senior patrolman on A's squad reports off duty (sick, personal day, ctc.), the patrolman's overtime list shall be utilized, unless there is sufficient manpower scheduled for duty or present on duty.
- C. The Sergeant and two (2) patrolmen are scheduled for duty. The Sergeant reports off duty (sick, personal day, etc.),

the Superior's overtime list shall be utilized, unless there is sufficient manpower scheduled for duty or present on duty.

- D. A Sergeant and three (3) patrolmen are scheduled for duty. The Sergeant and the senior patrolman reports off duty (sick, personal day, etc.), the Superior's overtime list shall be utilized, unless there is sufficient manpower scheduled for duty or present on duty.
- E. A Sergeant and three (3) patrolmen are scheduled for duty. The Sergeant and a less senior patrolman report off duty (sick, personal day, etc.), the rank of the second officer reporting off duty, thereby causing the overtime, determines which list is to be utilized, unless there is sufficient manpower scheduled for duty or present on duty.
- 13. If a temporary, non-scheduled absence turns into a scheduled, prolonged absence of three (3) or more days, the City reserves the right to designate the personnel assigned to the acting capacity, in which case, either a superior officer or a patrolman may be assigned at the City's sole discretion.
- 14. Overtime shall be offered to police officers on a rotating basis in a fixed sequence as the need occurs. If an officer declines to work the overtime he shall be charged for the hours which are eventually worked by the officer accepting the overtime.

EXAMPLE: Officer A is asked to work overtime and

declines. Officer B is asked, agrees, and works 4.5 hours. Both officer A and B are charged with 4.5 hours of overtime.

- 15. The fixed sequence shall be determined by seniority and total hours charged to each officer. The officer with the most department seniority and the least amount of charged overtime hours shall be offered the overtime first on the proper list to be utilized.
- 16. If contact is made by telephone and the officer is not home, or there is no answer, he is not charged with the hours of overtime worked. Only if an officer declines or works the overtime, shall he be charged with the hours of overtime worked.
- 17. In the event that none of the officers agree to work the overtime offered, then, the officer on the preceding shift with the least amount of department seniority shall be required to work all overtime refused by all other officers or when the overtime list has been exhausted.
- 18. In the event of a declared emergency, such as natural disaster or when an active, major crime is in progress, such as a bank robbery, when personnel cannot be expected to arrive from their residence or when special circumstances may require the assignment of personnel with specific expertise, these regulations may be waived. A post incident report concerning the waiver shall be filed by the squad commander to the offices of the waiver shall be filed by the squad commander to the offices of the Division

Commander and Chief of Police.

- 19. Superior Officers shall not be assigned to work overtime opportunities created by the absence of a bargaining unit member unless no bargaining unit members are available to work such overtime.
- 20. While a new police officer is in the basic training academy said new officer shall be compensated at the straight time rate without overtime for extra training duty at the academy.

XI. COMPENSATION FOR TEMPORARY ASSIGNMENTS

1. For the purpose of this Agreement, the City agrees to recognize that if any employee is temporarily assigned to a higher job classification the employee shall be compensated at the upgraded salary on the fifteenth (15th) aggregated working day. The employee, after accumulating fourteen (14) days, beginning in 1984, shall not need to re-qualify for each year. New employees hired after January 1, 1984 shall receive additional compensation at the upgraded salary on the thirty first (31st) day of aggregated working days. These employees, after accumulating thirty (30) days, beginning in 1984, shall not need to re-qualify for each year. The department shall maintain the necessary records required of upgrade.

MII. COURT TIME

- 1. Employees covered by this Agreement shall be paid time and one half (1%) for hours worked while in attendance of required court duties. Hours so worked shall be reported in accordance with department policy and included, when so reported, with normal distribution of salary and wages.
- 2. It is hereby agreed that employees covered by this Agreement shall wear their normal police uniform when appearing in South Amboy Municipal Court.
- 3. Employees required to attend court duties and police training shall be permitted to use police vehicles provided said vehicles are not in use for other purposes.

XIII. PERSONAL DAYS

Each employee shall be granted three (3) personal 1. Prior notice and approval shall be required according to regulations promulgated by the City, however, in no case shall more than seven (7) calendar days notice be required. Personal days shall not be consecutively utilized in connection with any vacation or sick leave granted hereinunder, unused personal days shall not accumulate and will be forfeited as of the last day of every calendar year. One (1) personal day shall be charged for each day or part of the day utilized. In the event that more than three (3) personal days are utilized in one (1) calendar year the employee hereby agrees to be docked for said additional time at the sole discretion of the City. Except in extreme emergencies no personal days shall be permitted in periods of time when the City has insufficient manpower to permit that granting of said request for personal days. The scheduling of overtime in of itself shall not be sufficient reason to deny the granting of a personal day.

MIV. COLLEGE CREDITS

- The City shall reimburse each employee covered under 1. . this Agreement the full amount of tuition per college credit for satisfactory completion of a police related course. Police related courses are defined as those associate and bachelor's degree college level courses, such as, police science, law enforcement, criminal justice, law, psychology, etc., which will have a direct bearing on the improvement of a police officer's ability to perform his police functions. Elective courses in non-related subjects shall not be eligible for reimbursement. In the event of a question regarding the eligibility of a course, a determination can be sought. Prior approval must be solicited and obtained prior to registration for said courses. At the sole discretion of the City, the City may deny approval due to manpower, budget, shift coverage, etc., at which time no reimbursement shall be made.
- 2. The employer agrees that all College Credit monies shall be paid on or before the first day of May of each calendar year to employees entitled to same.

MV. MEDICAL EXAMINATION

- 1. The City hereby agrees to provide an annual medical examination to each present and retired employee covered by this Agreement. Such examination shall be conducted by a physician licensed to practice in the State of New Jersey or in a hospital accredited by and or licensed to operate in the State of New Jersey. The results of said examination shall be made available to the employee and City.
- 2. The City will assume the cost of the annual medical examinations, but the costs will first be submitted to a current employer's medical insurance carrier with the City paying the applicable co-payment. Retirees would not be covered.

YVI. NON-ECONOMIC ISSUES

- 1. This Agreement represents the complete and final understandings on all bargaining issues between the City and the PBA except as may be provided herein. Either the City or the PBA may notice the other party to this Agreement prior to one hundred fifty (150) days before the budget submission date of the City (August 19) of the intent to re-open negotiations on non-economic items) or issue(s) only. Such notice shall be in writing and served upon the City Business Administrator as agent for the City or the president as agent for the PBA.
- 2. The effective date of any item reopened pursuant to this section shall be January 1 of the year next after the date of settlement of the item(s) or issue(s) unless the parties agree otherwise.

XVII. STRIKES AND OTHER JOB ACTION

1. The City and the PBA recognize and acknowledge existing law and court decisions in the State of New Jersey relating to the rights of public employees to strike or to take other concerted action designed to illegally obstruct or disable the proper functions of the City of South Amboy, and employees agree to be bound by all such laws as they now exist or as they may be modified or amended from time to time. It is further stipulated that in the event of a strike or other concerted action directed to obstruct or disable proper functions of the City, the City shall have the option at its sole discretion to seek, including, but not limited to: obtaining an injunction against such action under applicable laws, initiating suit to enforce the provisions of this Agreement or to recover damages and additional costs incurred from the PBA or the employees.

XVIII. REPRESENTATION FEE

bargaining unit does not become a member of the Association during any membership year which is covered by this Agreement, in whole or in part, said employee will be required to pay a representation fee to this Association for that membership year. The purpose of this fee will be to offset the employee's per capita cost of services rendered by the Association as majority representative.

SECTION B - AMOUNT OF FEE:

1. Notification

Association will notify the Finance Director in writing of the amount of regular membership dues, initiation fees, and assessments charged by the Association to its own members for that membership year. The representation fee to be paid by non-members will be equal to eighty-five percent (85%) of that total amount or that maximum percentage allowed by law:

2. Legal Maximum

In order to adequately offset the per capita cost of services rendered by the Association as majority representative,, the representation fee should be equal in amount to the regular membership dues, initiation fees and assessments charged by the Association to its own members, and the representation fee has been set at 85% of that amount solely because that is the maximum

presently allowed by law. If the law is changed in this regard, the amount of the representation fee automatically will be increased or decreased to the maximum allowed, said increase to become effective as of the beginning of the Association membership year immediately following the effective date of the change.

SECTION C - DEDUCTION AND TRANSMISSION OF FEE:

1. Notification

Once during each membership year covered in whole or in part by the Agreement, the Association will submit to the Finance Director a list of those employees who have not become members of the PBA for then current membership year. The City will deduct from the salaries of such employees, in accordance with paragraph 2 below, the full amount of the representation fee and promptly will transmit the amount so deducted to the Association.

2. Payroll Deduction Schedule

The City will deduct the representation fee in equal installments, as nearly as possible, from the paychecks paid to each employee on the aforementioned non-member list during the remainder of the membership year in question. The deductions will begin with the first paycheck paid:

- (a) Ten (10) days after receipt of the aforementioned non-member list by the Finance Director, or
- (b) Thirty (30) days after the employee begins his or her employment in a bargaining unit position, unless the employee

previously served in a non-bargaining unit position, unless the employee previously served in a non-bargaining unit position and then became covered by this Agreement or was laid off, in which event the deductions will begin with the first paycheck paid to said employee after the resumption of the employee's employment in a bargaining unit position.

3. Termination of Employment

An employee who is terminated for any reason shall only pay that portion of the annual fees of the Association due in equal installments to the date of termination.

4. Machanics

Except as otherwise provided in this Article, the mechanics for the deduction of representation fees and the transmission of such fees to the Association will, as nearly as possible, be the same as those used for the deduction and transmission of regular membership dues. The City will provide a list with each transmission of fees listing current members and those paying the representation fee.

5. Changes:

The Association will notify the Finance Director in writing of any changes in the list of non-members provided for in paragraph 1 above and/or the amount of the representation fee, and such changes will be reflected in any deductions made more than ten (10) days after the Finance Director received said notification.

6. New Employees

The PBA will be informed of the employment of each individual eligible for membership in the Association.

XIX. GENERAL PROVISIONS

- and shall not annul or modify applicable provisions of federal, state and local laws and ordinances or any properly enacted amendments, additions, or deletions thereto, except as specifically permitted thereby. If any provisions of the Agreement shall be judged invalid, either by court decree or by decision of an administrative tribunal, such adjudications shall not affect the validity of the remaining provisions which shall be deemed severable therefrom.
- 2. The term of this Agreement shall be from July 1, 2002 through June 30, 2005

XX. GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

To Provide for the expeditious and mutually satisfactory settlement of grievances arising with respect to complaints occurring under this Agreement the following procedures shall be used. This grievance procedure shall provide coverage for minor disciplinary matters (5 days or less of fine or suspension or equivalent thereof) and said minor disciplinary matters shall be included and subject to the binding arbitration provisions of this Agreement.

The procedure for settlement of grievances shall be as follows:

A. STEP ONE

In the event that any employee covered by this Agreement has a grievance within ten (10) working days of the occurrence of the event being grieved, the employee shall present the grievance in writing to the City Administrator or the representative in charge of the Department in the event of the Administrator's absence.

B. STEP TWO

If the Association wishes to appeal the decision of the City Administrator (or the representative in charge if the Administrator is absent), it shall be presented in writing to the employer's governing body or its delegated representative within ten (10) working days. This presentation shall include copies of all previous correspondence relating to the matter in dispute. The employer's governing body or its delegated representative may give the Association the opportunity to be heard and will give his decision in writing within twenty (20) working days of receipt of the written grievance.

C. STEP THREE

- (1) If no satisfactory resolution of the grievance is reached at STEP TWO then within five (5) working days the grievance shall be referred to the Public Employment Relations Commission for the selection of an arbitrator, pursuant to the rules of said Commission. The decision of the arbitrator shall be final and binding upon the parties. The expense of such arbitration shall be borne equally by the parties.
- (2) It is agreed between the parties that no arbitration hearing shall be held until after the expiration of at least thirty (30) days after the decision rendered by the employer's governing body or its representative on the grievance.
- (3) Employees covered by this Agreement shall have the right to process their own grievance without representative.
- (4) The cost of the arbitrator shall be borne equally by the parties but each party shall be responsible for such other costs as he may incur.

XXI. P.B.A DELEGATE.

The City hereby agrees to grant the necessary time off without loss of pay to the member of the P.B.A. who is selected as P.B.A. delegate in order to attend the monthly meetings of the State P.B.A. as may be subject to availability of manpower and advance approval of the Chief of Police provided that said time off does not exceed one (1) calendar day per month.

XXII. DEPARTMENTAL INVESTIGATIONS

In an effort to insure that departmental investigations are conducted in a manner which is conducive to good order and discipline, the following rules are hereby adopted:

- 1. The interrogation of a member of the force shall be at a reasonable hour, preferably when the member of the force is on duty, unless the exigencies of the investigation dictate otherwise.
- 2. The Interrogations shall take place at a location designated by the Chief of Police. Usually it will be at the Police Headquarters or the location where the incident allegedly occurred.
- 3. The member of the force shall be informed of the nature of the investigation before any interrogation commences. Sufficient information to reasonably apprise the members of the allegations should be provided. If it is known that the member of the force is being interrogated as a witness only, he should be so informed at the initial contact.
- 4. The questioning shall be reasonable in length. Fifteen (15) minutes time shall be provided for personal necessities, meals, telephone calls, and rest periods at the end of every two (2) hours.
- 5. The member of the force shall not be subject to any offensive language, nor shall he be threatened with transfer, dismissal or other disciplinary punishment. No promise of reward shall be made as an inducement to answering questions.

- 6. At every stage of the proceedings, the Department shall afford opportunity for a member of the force, if he so requests, to consult with counsel and/or his Association representative before questioned concerning a violation of the rules and regulations during the interrogation of a member of the force, which shall not delay the interrogation beyond one (1) hourconsultation with Association representative.
- 7. In cases other than departmental investigations, if an Officer is under arrest or if he is a suspect or the target of a criminal investigation, he shall be given his right pursuant to the current decisions of the United States Supreme Court.
- 8. Nothing herein shall be construed to deprive the Department or its Officers of the ability to conduct the routine and daily operations of the Department.
- 9. Employee No covered by Agreement shall be subjected to any urinalysis or blood screening unless one of the two (2) circumstances exist: (1) Where the Employer has probable cause to suspect that there a job-related individualized impact with respect to the specific Employee being tested. (2) the urinalysis or blood testing is done as part of a bona fide annual physical examination which is done for the entire Police Department.
- 10. Under no circumstances shall the Employer offer or direct the taking of a polygraph or voice print examination for any Employee covered by this Agreement.

XXIII. TERM AND RENEWAL

This Agreement shall have a term from July 1, 2002 through June 30, 2005. If the parties have not executed a successor agreement by June 30, 2005, then this Agreement shall continue in full force and effect until a successor agreement is executed.

Negotiations for a successor agreement shall be in accordance with the rules of the Public Employment Relations Commission.

FOR THE CITY OF SOUTH AMBOY:

wellente

FOR THE SOUTH AMBOY PBA LOCAL NO. 63:

P.S.A. Pres

MINNES

WITNESS:

112741200

PRA GOVER

DATE

APPENDIX A-1
SALARIES
(Employees Hired Before 1/1/97

	Eff. 7/1/02	Eff. 7/1/03	Eff. 7/1/04
STEP 1	\$47,352	\$49,246	\$51,462
STEP 2	52,950	55,068	57,546
STEP 3	64,561	67,144	70,165
DESCRIPTION	67,476	70,175	73,332
DETECTIVES	69,497	72,277	75.530

APPENDIX A-2 SALARIES (Employees Hired After 1/1/97)

	Rff. 7/1/02	Eff. 7/1/03	Eff. 7/1/04
ACADEMY RATE (1st 6 months)	\$31,020	\$32,260	\$33,711
BALANCE OF 1st YR. (2st 6 months)	37,225	38,714	40,456
DURING 2ND YEAR	43,275	45,006	47,031
DURING 3 FO YEAR	49,325	51,298	53,606
DURING 4TH YEAR	55,375	57,590	60,181
DURING 5TH YEAR	61,425	63,882	66,756
MAXIMUM (Upon completion of 60 months)	67,476	70,175	73,332
DETECTIVES	69,497	72,277	75,530

APPENDIX A-3
SALARIES
(Employees hired after 03/02/01)

Police <u>Officers</u>	Eff. 7/1/02	Eff. 1/1/03	Eff. 7/1/04
ACADEMY RATE (1 st 6 months)	\$29,262	\$29,847	\$30,742
EALANCE OF FIRST year $(2^{nd}, 6 \text{ mos.})$	32,698	34,006	35,536
DURING 2" YEAR	36,499	37,959	39,668
DURING 3RD YEAR	43,275	45,006	47,031
DURING 4TH YEAR	49,325	51,298	53,606
DURING 5TH YEAR	55,375	57,590	60,181
DURING 6th YEAR	61,425	63,882	66,756
MAXIMUM (upon completion of 72 months)	67,476	70,175	73,332
DETECTIVES	69,497	72,277	75,530